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ROUTE 66 IN ILLINOIS
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If ever you plan to motor west, Travel my way, take the highway that is best.


Bobby Troup, songwriter


THE ILLINOIS STRETCH OF ROUTE 66 had simple beginnings as the Pontiac Trail gravel track in 1915. Chicago, Illinois had been a focal point of many Native American trails, and was to pass through St. Louis, the jumping off point for Lewis and Clark’s Expedition of Discovery that opened up the West through the newly acquired Louisiana Purchase. Fur traders gradually established a trail to the Mississippi road at Lake Michigan to take their goods south to New Orleans and thousands of others passed this way on their way to the West.


By amalgamating these existing tracks, Route 66 gradually emerged and a three-hundred mile long stretch of the route stretched through Illinois. The road should have been designated Route 60, but the road running between Kentucky and Virginia had already claimed this number. Cyrus Avery, who became known as the “Father of Route 66” agreed to the route name in 1926. Avery was an important member of the Joint Board of Interstate Highways and fully understood that the development of a modern highway network would have a huge impact on American prosperity. Route 66 became the most iconic road in the country, crossing the heart of America on its way to the Pacific. Under the direction of Avery’s U.S. Highway 66 Association, the road was gradually paved. Paving began in the 1920s by road crews earning forty cents an hour for the back-breaking work. The Great Depression of the 1930s slowed its construction of the road, but the Illinois section was the first section to be finished in 1927. It took until 1938 for the whole length of the route (all 2451 miles) to be covered by asphalt. Al Capone was one of the most prominent proponents of paving the road, which facilitated running bootleg liquor during the Prohibition era. By the time it was finished this iconic road crossed eight states from Chicago to the Pacific Coast of California. It wove through the center of countless villages and towns and brought prosperity to the heart of a nation, promoting travel and vacations around the country. Route 66 became the most important highway in America and helped to open up the West.


In 1939, novelist John Steinbeck dubbed Route 66 the Mother Road. It was used by hundreds of dust bowl farming families as they immigrated to California for better employment prospects. Steinbeck portrayed this westward migration in his novel Grapes of Wrath. The road was also known as Main Street USA. It generated massive economic growth and opened up many American tourist attractions including the Grand Canyon, the Painted Desert, and the Meranec Caverns. These were promoted by countless Meranec Caverns barns.


The Illinois section of the road travelled across farmland, gliding diagonally across the state in a southwest-northeast direction. Beginning near the shore of Lake Michigan, the original route began at Jackson Boulevard and Michigan Avenue. In 1933 this was moved to reclaimed land at Jackson Boulevard and Lakeshore Drive. The current road moves west from the intersection of Lakeshore Drive and Jackson Boulevard. It then weaves a succession of iconic Illinois towns including Joliet, Odell, Bloomington, Lincoln, Springfield, and Edwardsville. President Lincoln himself walked the streets of Illinois’s state capital, Springfield. He practiced law in the town and spoke in the capital building, returning to the town as a fallen hero.
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The Palms Grill Café first opened in 1934.


In the 1930s the road carried a huge volume of traffic. The cars of the time had top speeds of sixty to eighty miles per hour, but had minimal safety equipment. This toxic cocktail resulted in a plethora of fatal accidents and the road became known as the “Bloody Highway” or “Death Alley.” The stretch of Route 66 in Towanda, Illinois was a terrible accident black spot and became known as the “Dead Man’s Curve.” Underpasses were built to prevent pedestrian casualties, but these also became common.


The Mother Road also played its part in World War II, carrying personnel, equipment, and munitions across the country. In the Post-War years, thousands of demobbed GIs travelled West along the road to new lives in California. In the 1960s, Route 66 became a route to the counterculture of the West Coast and hundreds of hippies and young people used it to make their way West.


In the 1950s, Route 66 became most important as a vacation route for thousands of American families, serviced by thousands of roadside attractions of every kind from motels, to drive-ins, diners, shops, and gas stations. The iconic Muffler Men dated from this time and became emblematic of the route. These iconic statues were giant fiberglass advertising characters that promoted many businesses along the road. The first of these, Tall Paul appeared in 1940, advertising a hotdog stand in Cicero. Following restoration, Tall Paul was moved along the route to Atlanta, Illinois. The state’s surviving Muffler Men are known as the “Three Gentle Giants of Illinois.” Tall Paul has two giant companions along the Illinois stretch. The green “Gemini Giant” of Wilmington, Illinois advertises the Launching Pad restaurant, while the third is the Lauterbach Tire Man. There are two other Route 66 muffler men located in Flagstaff, Arizona and Gallup, New Mexico.


The road became an icon of popular American folklore; it became the most famous road in America and has come to symbolize freedom, adventure, and mobility. It became a year-round route between the American Midwest and the West Coast. It also helped to draw the West into the economic life of the nation and mirrored the up-beat mood of the nation. The road was celebrated by books, movies, songs, and television shows. These cultural celebrations include the movies Rider, Thelma and Louise, The Bagdad Café, Disney’s Cars, Paris Texas, Little Miss Sunshine, and the television series Route 66. This was aired between 1960 and 1964 and focused on the mythical characters Todd and Buzz who drove their Corvette Sport along the route. But the most famous embodiment of the excitement of Route 66 is undoubtedly Bobby Troup’s famous song, Get Your Kicks on Route 66. First recorded by the Nat King Cole Trio in 1946, the song has been covered by hundreds of artists over the decades, including Chuck Berry, The Rolling Stones and Dépêche Mode.
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The green Gemini Giant sits alongside Route 66 in Wilmington, Illionis.
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There are abandoned vehicles along the length of Route 66.


Sadly, having been the initiator of the road, Illinois was also the first state to start decommissioning Route 66 and replace it with Interstate 1-55. The iconic signs started to come down in January 1977. The road had become overcrowded and dangerous with its many distractions and roadside attractions.


As the road became disused, by-passed towns along its route became ghostly shadows of their former selves as thousands of travelers switched to the Interstate. Route 66 is haunted by deserted ruins and abandoned motels, gas stations, diners, drive-ins, and road signs. It is estimated that there are over three-thousand abandoned motels line the old road, and innumerable crumbling buildings. Ironically these ghost towns have now become the focus of the thousands of travelers from all around the world who make the road trip along this historic route every year. The first Route 66 Association was formed in 1989 by Angel Delgadillo to “preserve, promote and enjoy the past and present of U.S. Highway 66.” In the 1990s, the route was designated a “state heritage tourism project” in the late 1990s and was named a National Scenic Byway in 2005. There are now Route 66 Associations in all eight Route 66 states: Illinois, Missouri, Kansas, Oklahoma, Texas, New Mexico, Arizona, and California. In Illinois, the Illinois Route 66 association conserves the route for today’s tourists and the Route 66 Museum in Pontiac, Illinois preserves nostalgic relics from the Mother Road.
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The sign for the old Bel Air Drive-In Theater in Mitchell, Illinois. It opened in 1950 and closed in 1987.
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The Eagle Hotel is the oldest on Route 66.


SHADES OF DECAY IN WILMINGTON, ILLINOIS


WILMINGTON (ORIGINALLY WINCHESTER) WAS BORN IN 1834, when Thomas Cox acquired four-hundred acres of land from the government and built a sawmill. Another building built in 1836, the Eagle Hotel, became a stage stop. The hotel is of no particular style, but is most strongly Influenced by the Greek Revival movement. An addition was added to the hotel in the 1840s, which connected the hotel to an adjacent warehouse. This addition featured a storefront where independent businesses could rent space to sell their goods.


When Route 66 was built in the early 1930s, the town of Wilmington received a much needed boost by providing services for the many travelers of the new route. The Eagle Hotel, having served the stagecoaches of the past, now served those traveling on the new trail to the west, managing to remain profitable by offering cheap rooms to families who recently moved to or were passing through the town. In 1937, there was further growth in the form of the five-hundred-seat Mar Theatre opened at 121 S. Main Street. The Dairy Delight would open in the late 1950s, and would later become the Launching Pad Drive-In, selling only hot dogs and ice cream, but has long since expanded to a full service menu. The drive-in is located on 810 East Baltimore Street and a 1960s vintage, large green Gemini Giant stands welcomes travelers to the restaurant.


With the demise of Route 66 the Eagle Hotel fell into serious disrepair by the late 20th century and the City of Wilmington was considering demolition until it was purchased by Bill Scales, a man with a real estate and building background. This old hotel is the oldest on all of Route 66, first catering to riverboat and stagecoach travelers when it was built in 1836. Thanks to Scales, the Route 66 Corridor Preservation Program, and other preservationists, there are plans for the old hotel to be restored so that it can continue to cater to travelers for generations to come. The old hotel is listed on the National Register of Historic Places and is located at 100 Water Street.
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The rear of the Eagle Hotel.


THE AMBLER-BECKER GAS STATION IN DWIGHT, ILLINOIS


THE ICONIC AMBLER-BECKER GAS STATION in Dwight, Illinois operated for longer than any other gas station along the route of the Mother Road. The building was constructed in 1933 by local builder Jack Schore on just under an acre of land bought from a local man, Otto Strufe. The single storey building has asphalt shingles and three gas pumps, It was constructed in the classic “house and canopy” style that typified the genre. Located at the junction of Route 66 and Illinois Route 17, the business operated for sixty-six years. It was originally known as Becker’s Marathon Gas Station. In 1936 it was leased by Vernon Von Qualen who bought the premises over the next couple of years. He sold the business on to Basil “Tubby” Ambler in 1938, who owned and operated it until 1966. The gas station then changed hands twice more before being bought by Phil Becker in 1970. Becker ran the station with his wife Debbie until 1996. Becker had hung around Ambler’s from the age of nine and started work there in 1964. As the owner, Becker contracted with Marathon Oil and named his business Becker’s Marathon Gas Station. Becker’s fell in to disuse after the business ceased trading, but it retained a hold on the imagination of the people of Dwight. The building was added to the National Register of Historic places in 2001, and the Register contributed $10,400 to its restoration. This took place between 2005 and 2007 before Becker’s was re-opened as a visitor center for Dwight. The interior of the building now evokes the spirit of the 1940s, with its pot belly stove, old-style Coke bottles, antique cash register and vintage advertising. It looks as though Tubby Ambler has just stepped out to pump gas for a weary traveler pulling off from Route 66...


The station sold gasoline until the 1960s and then became an auto body shop until the late 1970s, when it closed its doors for good. It fell into disrepair and would have been destroyed had it not been for the town of Odell and the people who loved their gas station. In 1997, the station was listed in the National Register of Historic Places. Then, thanks to a collaborative effort, the Illinois Route 66 Association, the Village of Odell, Illinois State Historic Preservation Office, the National Park Service Route 66 Corridor Preservation Program, and Hampton Inn Landmarks restored the station to its former glory. A Standard Oil sign hanging from the roof swings gently in the warm breeze and an old-fashioned gas pump looks ready to serve the next customer. Although Odell’s Standard Oil Gas Station no longer sells gasoline, it has become a welcome center for the Village of Odell. The station won the National Historic Route 66 Federation Cyrus Avery Award in 2 002 for the year’s most outstanding Route 66 preservation project.
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Ambler-Beck gas station, Dwight, Illinois


FUNKS GROVE: THE WALKER STORE, RITTENHOUSE GAS STATION AND MAPLE SYRUP ANTIQUE STORE, ILLINOIS
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An old gas pump stands guard.


THE WALKER STORE WAS A GROCERY STORE and gas station until the late 1970s, when it became an antique store. The storefront is not being used at this time. Named after the Funk family, Funks Grove, Illinois is home to the original “Maple Syrup.” Upon nearing this old community, a rustic sign stands on a grassy embankment with the simple words “Maple Sirup.” Here, amongst the prairie, sits a natural maple grove dominating the landscape and filled with sugar and black maples of record size. The actual site of the syrup operation is about a quarter mile to the south.


At the sign, situated at Funks Grove Road, turn west to the sleepy little hamlet of Funk’s Grove. Here sits the old Walker Store which once operated as a grocery store and gas station. Later, it was utilized as an antique store, and though still filled with dusty relics, it is closed today. The historic depot that stands in the middle of the clearing was actually the passenger depot in nearby Shirley before it was moved to Funk’s Grove. The original Funk’s Grove Depot is located at the Funk’s Grove Camp to the south.


Passing by still utilized grain silos, the road continues westward about a mile to the old cemetery and Funk’s Grove Church which dates back to 1845. Adam Funk, Isaac’s father, chose the location of the cemetery and in 1830, he was the first to be buried there.


When the Funk and Stubblefield families first came to the area church services were first held in their private homes before a log school building was constructed in 1827, at which time they were held there. Though the building is gone, it is marked with a large stone just west of the still standing church building. However, Robert Stubblefield would later insist on building a “real” church building and he, along with Isaac and their sons erected the building in 1864-65. The church, an outdoor “chapel,” and the cemetery are now owned and managed by the Funks Grove Cemetery Association. The church, which still features its original walnut pulpit and altar rail, white pine pews, and original glass is open year round and can be rented for weddings.
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Funk’s Grove Maple Syrup Antiques, Illinois.
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The Funks Grove Camp.


On down the road about another mile is the original homestead site of Robert Stubblefield. All that’s left today is a rustic barn sitting in the middle of a field. Near here also was once the Burger Sawmill and Farm. There is nothing left of the sawmill, but a sign marks the spot.


The Sugar Grove Nature Center, which protects over 1,000 acres of the largest remaining intact prairie grove in Illinois, is just south of the old town site of Funks Grove. It includes over five miles of trails and hosts various events throughout the year.


After having visited the sites of Funks Grove, return to Route 66 and continue a quarter mile south to Funks Grove Camp, the site where maple syrup is made. For generations the Funk family used the many maple trees to make syrup and maple sugar for their personal use. Years later, Arthur Funk, Isaac’s grandson, capitalized on this when he opened the first commercial syrup camp in 1891. In 1896 Arthur’s brother, Lawrence, took over the operation and in the 1920’s the syrup operation was passed to Hazel Funk Holmes.


THE ODELL SERVICE STATION, ILLINOIS


IN 1868, JOHN D. ROCKEFELLER FORMED the Standard Oil Company in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. This was the beginning of the Standard Oil Trust Company that would soon dominate oil refineries and gas stations around America. In 1890, the Standard Oil Company set up its first company in Illinois.


In 1932, a contractor, Patrick O’Donnell, purchased a small parcel of land along Route 66 in Odell, Illinois. There he built a gas station based on a 1916 Standard Oil of Ohio design, commonly known as a domestic style gas station. This “house with canopy” style of gas station gave customers a comfortable feeling they could associate with home. This association created an atmosphere of trust for commercial and recreational travelers of the day. The station originally sold Standard Oil products, but after O’Donnell leased the property to others, the station began selling Sinclair and the now famous Phillips 66. In the late 1940s, O’Donnell added a two-bay garage to the building to accommodate garage and repair services, which were necessary in order to stay competitive with the nine other stations that occupied the short stretch of Route 66 through Odell. The gas station was in constant use during the heyday of travel on Route 66. It was a welcomed rest stop for weary travelers and a place for the kids to get out and stretch their legs.
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The original workshop at the Odell Service Station.
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The Mill Restaurant, Lincoln, Illinois.


LINCOLN, ILLINOIS


ROUTE 66 IN LINCOLN FOLLOWED TWO DIRECTIONS: Business 66, the original route, went through residential neighborhoods and ran adjacent to the downtown business district. The “bypass” or “beltline” branch of Route 66 (now part of Business 55), which was completed by the start of World War II, ran along the western and northern perimeters of the city.


Paul Coddington of Lincoln formally opened his restaurant at the corner of Washington St. and Stringer Ave. on June 25, 1929, under the name of the Blue Mill. As a special treat that night, his children dressed in Dutch costumes with wooden shoes and passed out roses to all of the patrons. The eatery was constructed by local contractors in the shape of a small Dutch windmill with sails on the front. The building had blue trim and the continuously turning sails were decorated with lights. Waitresses, dressed in blue with white aprons, served food on plates from the Illinois China Company that were emblazoned with a “Blue Mill” design. One of the opening day specials was fried ham with peanut butter on toast with mayonnaise and head lettuce - three high. Soon, the Blue Mill became known for serving patrons grilled sandwiches at any time of the day or night. The establishment served meats from Eckert’s Market, locally made Marcucci ice cream and soft drinks from the Chero-Cola Bottling Company in Springfield, Illinois. On September 9, 1936, Raymond Hickman purchased the property, His wife, Fern, who had formerly operated a private catering service, took over supervision of the kitchen. Hickman enjoyed squirrel hunting and he liked to share his bounty with his customers. On at least one occasion in the 1930s, he was said to have served a squirrel dinner at The Mill. In 1945, Blossom Huffman purchased The Mill, unbeknownst to her husband, Albert. He, nevertheless, ended up helping to run the establishment.


By the mid-1980s the Mill had lost most of the Dutch-themed interior and along with its food offered a museum of strange objects. A mechanical leg appeared to have just kicked its way through a hole in the ceiling. Additional oddities included four life-sized figures, a suit of armor and a 20-pound stuffed catfish.


There was also a “jack-in-the-box toilet” that made noise when one raised the lid. Albert once explained, “I had to keep changing things so people would come down here and see what the crazy nut was doing now.” The Mill closed in 1996, and stood deteriorating for many years, the subject of increasing neighborhood complaints about unsafe conditions. Ernie Edwards, owner of the famous Pig Hip restaurant on Route 66 in Broadwell, pleaded for the building to be saved for use as a museum, especially after his own Pig Hip Museum burned.


In 2005, The Mill was sold for taxes, but a year later, then Logan County Tourism Director Geoff Ladd stepped up to work with Edwards and other supporters in an effort to save the building. In 2006, The Route 66 Heritage Foundation of Logan County was created to promote and preserve Route 66 sites in Logan County.
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The old roadbed in Cayuga, Illinois.


CAYUGA, ILLINOIS


THE SECTION OF ROUTE 66 BETWEEN CAYUGA to Chenoa was first constructed in the 1920s. At the time, it was state-of-the-art pavement that boasted a width of eighteen feet and a Portland cement slab six inches deep. Like the Route 66 Alternate between Wilmington and Joliet, this 18.2-mile segment stretching from Cayuga to Chenoa proved woefully inadequate to carry the burden of Route 66’s World War II mission. The excessive weight and volume of wartime traffic wreaked havoc on the thin roadbed, necessitating a serious upgrade. A 1943-44 wartime makeover included two lanes of twenty-four feet wide and ten-inch thick concrete. The sections were generally striped for eleven feet driving lanes (an extension of two feet over the older pavement). The southbound lanes, constructed directly over the older roadbed, were finished in 1944, and the northbound lanes were completed in 1954-5 5, together creating a four-lane highway with a center median. Today the northbound lanes have a new macadam overlay, but the southbound lanes retain, for the most part, their original concrete surface. The segment retains six historic bridges. The cracked and crumbling blacktop seems to echo the deserted feel of the road.


SHEA’S GAS STATION, SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS


[image: Images]


D-Day veteran Bill Shea founded his iconic Route 66 gas station and ran it for sixty-six years. He died at the age of 91.


SHEA’S GAS STATION MUSEUM LOCATED on Route 66 in Springfield, Illinois was transformed from a working Texaco, and later Marathon, station into a world renowned museum by owner Bill Shea and his wife Helen. The museum contains an eclectic mix of vintage gas station memorabilia collected over the last fifty years including the original gas pumps, wooden phone booths, signs, photos, and other mementos reminiscent of old Route 66 service stations. In February 2000, the former Mahan’s Station, rumored to be the oldest filling station in Illinois, was moved 21 miles to its current location within the museum compound. It has since been fully restored. The museum’s guestbook boasts visitors from all over Europe and Asia and has become a destination for international travelers exploring the Mother Road. Due to his commitment to preserving Route 66 history and gas station memorabilia, plus his many years of quality service to his customers, Bill Shea and his shop were inducted into the Route 66 Hall of Fame in 1993. The entire Shea family was inducted in 2002. Bill Shea died in December 2013.
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